
 

 
90 North Main Street | Tooele, Utah 84074 

435-843-2113 | 435-843-2119 (fax) | www.tooelecity.gov 

City Recorder’s Office 

Department  

PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

Notice is hereby given that the Tooele City Council will meet in a Business Meeting on Wednesday, October 15, 

2025 at the hour of 7:00 p.m.  The meeting will be held in the Tooele City Hall Council Chambers, located at 90 

North Main Street, Tooele, Utah. The complete public notice is posted on the Utah Public Notice Website 

www.utah.gov, the Tooele City Website www.tooelecity.gov, and at Tooele City Hall. To request a copy of the 

public notice or for additional inquiries please contact Shilo Baker, City Recorder at (435)843-2111 or 

shilob@tooelecity.gov. 

 

We encourage you to join the City Council meeting electronically by visiting the Tooele City YouTube 

Channel, at https://www.youtube.com/@tooelecity or by going to YouTube.com and searching “Tooele City 

Channel”. If you are attending electronically and would like to submit a comment for the public comment 

period or for a public hearing item, please email cmpubliccomment@tooelecity.gov anytime up until the start of 

the meeting.  Emails will be read at the designated points in the meeting. 

AGENDA 

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Roll Call 

3. Mayor’s Youth Recognition Awards 

4. Public Comment Period 

5. Public Hearing and Motion on Ordinance 2025-27 An Ordinance of the Tooele City Council 

Amending Tooele City Code Section 4-8-2 Regarding Road Construction Standards for Local Streets 

Presented by Paul Hansen, City Engineer 

6. Public Hearing and Motion on Ordinance 2025-28 An Ordinance of Tooele City Amending the 

Zoning Map Pertaining to the Tooele Business Park Zoning District by Re-Assigning the Land Use 

Sections of the TBP Zoning Sections Map, Affecting Approximately 285.1 Acres of Property Located at 

Approximately 1100 West 700 South 

Presented by John Perez, Economic Development Director 

 

7. Economic Development First Quarter Update 

Presented by John Perez, Economic Development Director 

 

8. Resolution 2025-80 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Approving and Ratifying an Agreement 

with Speakmans Concrete Service, LLC, for the Tooele Library Stamped Concrete Project, East 

Presented by Chase Randall, Library Director 

9. Resolution 2025-81 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Approving an Agreement Change Order 

No. 5 with Broken Arrow Construction for England Acres Park Phase III 

Presented by Darwin Cook, Parks & Recreation Director 

10. Resolution 2025-82 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Approving an Agreement with Speakman’s 

Concrete Services for the Installation of a Sidewalk on 200 West Between 500 North and 600 North 

Presented by Jamie Grandpre, Public Works Director 

%2Jefe ~ ~-----------
Est . 1853 

http://www.tooelecity.gov/
http://www.utah.gov/
http://www.tooelecity.gov/
https://www.youtube.com/@tooelecity
mailto:cmpubliccomment@tooelecity.gov


 

 
90 North Main Street | Tooele, Utah 84074 

435-843-2113 | 435-843-2119 (fax) | www.tooelecity.gov 

City Recorder’s Office 

Department  

 

11. Invoices & Purchase Orders 

Presented by Shilo Baker, City Recorder 

12. Minutes 

~September 17, 2025 Business Meeting 

 

13. Adjourn 

_______________________ 

Shilo Baker, Tooele City Recorder 

 

Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals needing special accommodations should notify Shilo 

Baker, Tooele City Recorder, at 435-843-2111 or shilob@tooelecity.gov, prior to the meeting. 

%2Jefe ~ ~-----------
Est . 1853 

http://www.tooelecity.gov/
mailto:shilob@tooelecity.gov


TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

ORDINANCE 2025-27 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL AMENDING TOOELE CITY CODE 
SECTION 4-8-2 REGARDING ROAD CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS FOR LOCAL 
STREETS. 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Constitution, Article XI, Section 5 directly confers upon Utah’s 
charter cities, of which Tooele City is the only remaining such city, “the authority to 
exercise all powers relating to municipal affairs, and to adopt and enforce within its limits, 
local police, sanitary and similar regulations not in conflict with the general law”; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, in addition to the municipal powers bestowed by the Utah Constitution 
to Charter Cities, Utah Code Section 10-8-84 enables Tooele City to “pass all ordinances 
and rules, and make all regulations . . . as are necessary and proper to provide for the 
safety and preserve the health, and promote the prosperity, improve the morals, peace 
and good order, comfort, and convenience of the city and its inhabitants, and for the 
protection of property in the city”; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Utah Code grants authority to municipalities to regulate their public 
streets (see UCA 10-8-8, -8.6, -11, -23, -24, -25, -30, -32, and UCA Title 72 Chapter 3); 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, TCC Chapter 4-8 regulates and establishes the standards for the 
construction of Tooele City’s public streets, including dead end streets and cul-de-sacs; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Administration recommends an amendment to TCC Section 
4-8-2 regarding the width of local streets, including private streets, as outlined in attached 
Exhibit A; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, this amendment is necessary in order to harmonize Tooele City Code 
with current practices, as well as to continue Tooele City’s compliance with House Bill 
406 of the 2023 Utah Legislature established a state-wide maximum paved travel width 
of 32 feet for local streets, requiring the City to amend its local street asphalt width of 34 
feet and right-of-way width of 60 feet to 32 feet and 58 feet, respectively (the 32 feet does 
not include the City’ standard curb and gutter); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, while the City’s road standards are not contained in TCC Title 7, the 
City Code’s zoning and development title, and may not be considered a “land use 
regulation” as defined by state law, still, out of an abundance of caution, the City Council 
convened a duly-noticed public hearing on October 15, 2025: 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that 
Tooele City Code Section 4-8-2 regarding road construction standards is hereby 
amended as shown in Exhibit A, attached. 
 



 This Ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the peace, health, 
safety, or welfare of Tooele City and shall become effective immediately upon passage, 
without further publication, by authority of the Tooele City Charter. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Ordinance is passed by the Tooele City Council this 
____ day of _______________, 2025. 
  



TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 
(For) (Against) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING:  ___________________________________________ 
 

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
(Approved) (Disapproved) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Shilo Baker, City Recorder 
        
 
           S E A L 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: _________________________________ 
    Matthew C. Johnson, Tooele City Attorney 

  



 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 
 
 

TCC Section 4-8-2, As Proposed 
 

(showing highlighted additions and deletions) 
 



Proposed Amendments to Tooele City Code
Modification of pavement width from 34' to 32' to be in compliance with 

current ROW sections

By Resolution 2023-21, the City Council made certain modifications to Tooele City Code (TCC)
Title 4 - Chapter 8 Road & Bridge Construction Standards, that brought the City into compliance
with House Bill 406 of the 2023 Utah Legislature that established a state-wide maximum paved
travel width of 32 feet for local streets.

It is recommended that Section 4-8(2) Street Design be modified to more fully come into
compliance with House Bill 406, as proposed below.  This proposal allows a provision whereby
the City can approved pavement width less than 30', breaks the requirements into sub-paragraphs
for clarity, and eliminates language that may be redundant.

TCC 4-8(2) Street Design

(15) All streets proposed or intended to be built, owned, or maintained as private streets
shall be designed and constructed to the same standards and specifications outlined in this
Chapter for public local class or larger streets. 

(a)  Private streets may not be reduced in width narrower than 30 32 feet of asphalt
with curb and gutter on each side unless approved otherwise thru a City Council
approved Planned Unit Development (PUD), Residential Special District (RSD) or
other formal Tooele City Council action.  In no case shall the pavement width of a
private street be less than allowed by the International Fire Code and Tooele City
Code Chapter 3 - Fire Code. 

(b)  Any private street proposed to be narrower than 34 32 feet of asphalt shall be
required to prevent on-street parking through the provision of adequate off-street
parking as outlined in Chapters 7-4 and 7-11a and through private enforcement. Land
use applications that include proposed private streets that are narrower than  34 feet of
asphalt shall include, and shall provide, as a part of the application, a mechanism by
which perpetual private enforcement preventing on-street parking is assured.
Applications that include private streets narrower than  34 32 feet in asphalt width
shall be subject to review and approval of the proposed private street design and
private parking enforcement mechanism by the designated approval authority for the
type of land use application, following recommendation from the Tooele City Fire
Chief, Community Development Department, Public Works Department, and the City
Engineer. The City Attorney shall review the proposed private parking enforcement
mechanism and provide a recommendation to the approval authority on that proposed
mechanism. 

(c)  Land use applications may propose alterations to the cross section for the street
regarding sidewalks and parkstrips but shall maintain pedestrian access of at least a
5-foot width throughout the development and in compliance with requirements of the
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).



TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

ORDINANCE 2025-28 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF TOOELE CITY AMENDING THE ZONING MAP PERTAINING 
TO THE TOOELE BUSINESS PARK ZONING DISTRICT BY RE-ASSIGNING THE 
LAND USE SECTIONS OF THE TBP ZONING SECTIONS MAP, AFFECTING 
APPROXIMATELY 285.1 ACRES OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 
1100 WEST 700 SOUTH. 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Code §10-9a-401, et seq., requires and provides for the 
adoption of a “comprehensive, long-range plan” (hereinafter the “General Plan”) by each 
Utah city and town, which General Plan contemplates and provides direction for (a) 
“present and future needs of the community” and (b) “growth and development of all or 
any part of the land within the municipality”; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Tooele City General Plan includes various elements, including 
water, sewer, transportation, and land use.  The Tooele City Council adopted the Land 
Use Element of the Tooele City General Plan, after duly-noticed public hearings, by 
Ordinance 2020-47, on December 16, 2020, by a vote of 5-0; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Land Use Element (hereinafter the “Land Use Plan”) of the 
General Plan establishes Tooele City’s general land use policies, which have been 
adopted by Ordinance 2020-47 as a Tooele City ordinance, and which set forth 
appropriate Use Designations for land in Tooele City (e.g., residential, commercial, 
industrial, open space); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Land Use Plan reflects the findings of Tooele City’s elected 
officials regarding the appropriate range, placement, and configuration of land uses 
within the City, which findings are based in part upon the recommendations of land use 
and planning professionals, Planning Commission recommendations, public comment, 
and other relevant considerations; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Code §10-9a-501, et seq., provides for the enactment of “land 
use [i.e., zoning] ordinances and a zoning map” that constitute a portion of the City’s 
regulations (hereinafter “Zoning”) for land use and development, establishing order and 
standards under which land may be developed in Tooele City; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a fundamental purpose of the Land Use Plan is to guide and inform 
the recommendations of the Planning Commission and the decisions of the City Council 
about the Zoning designations assigned to land within the City (e.g., R1-10 residential, 
neighborhood commercial (NC), light industrial (LI)); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, on June 7, 2023, City Council approved Ordinance 2023-28, 
creating the Tooele City Business Park Zoning District; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City Administration requests consideration of an amendment to 
the Zoning Map as to the Tooele Business Park in order to align with current 



infrastructure needs and planning standards, with key changes including modifying 
potential lots to reflect existing and future water and sewer utilities, updating existing 
and proposed road layouts, revising lots and boundaries to reflect existing ownership, 
and eliminating the previously planned rail spur (see Staff Report attached as Exhibit A); 
and, 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendment affects approximately 285.1 acres located at 
approximately 1100 West and 700 South as indicated in Exhibit B (see also Engineering 
Review attached as Exhibit C); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, on September 24, 2025, the Planning Commission convened a duly 
noticed public hearing, accepted written and verbal comment, and voted to forward its 
positive recommendation to the City Council: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that: 

1. this Ordinance and the Zoning Map amendment proposed therein is in the best 
interest of the City, in that it will provide consistent zoning for current 
infrastructure needs and planning standards; and, 

2. the Zoning Map is hereby amended for the property located at approximately 
1100 West and 700 South as requested and illustrated in Exhibit B. 

  

 This Ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the peace, health, 
safety, or welfare of Tooele City and shall become effective immediately upon passage, 
without further publication, by authority of the Tooele City Charter. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Ordinance is passed by the Tooele City Council 
this ____ day of _______________, 2025. 



 
TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 

(For) (Against) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING:  ___________________________________________ 
 

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
(Approved) (Disapproved) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Shilo Baker, City Recorder 
        
 
           S E A L 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: ____________________________ 
    Matthew C. Johnson, City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 
 
 

Staff Report 
 



 

Tooele Business Park   App. # NA 
Ordinance Amendment Request 1  

Community Development Department 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

18th September 2025
 

To: Tooele City Planning Commission 
Business Date:  09/24/2025 

 
From: Planning Division 

Community Development Department 
Economic Development Department  

 
Prepared By: John Perez, Economic Development Director 
 
 
Re: Tooele Business Park  – Ordinance Amendment Request 

Application No.:  
Applicant: Tooele City Administration/Economic Development  
Project Location: Approximately N 1100 W and 700 S 
Zoning: Business Park ZMA 
Acreage: 285.1 
Request: Request for approval of a Business Park ZMA and Ordinance Amendment 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Tooele Business Park zoning map has been revised to align with current infrastructure needs and 
planning standards. Key changes include modifying potential lots to reflect existing and future water and 
sewer utilities, updating existing and proposed road layouts, revising lots and boundaries to reflect 
existing ownership, and eliminating the previously planned rail spur, which is no longer considered viable 
for the park's success based on analysis of costs.  
  
ANALYSIS 

Summary of Proposed Changes to Tooele Business Park 

The proposed updates to the Tooele Business Park focus on improving and aligning the 
development with current infrastructure needs and planning standards. Key changes include: 

1. Infrastructure Improvements: 
a. Water and Sewer: Modifications are being made to better accommodate 

existing and planned water and sewer utilities, ensuring capacity and 
alignment with city infrastructure. 

b. Roads and Access: Roadway layouts are being updated to improve traffic flow 
and access throughout the business park. These changes reflect current and 
future transportation needs, including proper connections to public road 
systems. 

2. Property Boundary Adjustments: 

%'6~ ~ ------------Est. 1853 



 

Tooele Business Park   App. # NA 
Ordinance Amendment Request 2  

a. Parcel boundaries are being revised to more accurately reflect existing 
ownership and development intentions, helping reduce conflicts and 
streamline future development or sale of parcels. 

3. Rail Spur Elimination: 
a. The previously planned rail spur is being removed from the development 

plans. This change reflects current economic and logistical needs, as the rail 
component is no longer seen as viable or necessary for the park's success. 

 
Criteria For Approval.  The criteria for review and potential approval of a Zoning Map Amendment 
Request request is found in Section 7-1A-7 of the Tooele City Code.  This section depicts the standard of 
review for such requests as: 

 
 (1) No amendment to the Zoning Ordinance or Zoning Districts Map may be recommended 

by the Planning Commission or approved by the City Council unless such amendment or 
conditions thereto are consistent with the General Plan.  In considering a Zoning 
Ordinance or Zoning Districts Map amendment, the applicant shall identify, and the City 
Staff, Planning Commission, and City Council may consider, the following factors, 
among others: 
(a) The effect of the proposed amendment on the character of the surrounding area. 
(b) Consistency with the goals and policies of the General Plan and the General Plan 

Land Use Map. 
(c) Consistency and compatibility with the General Plan Land Use Map for 

adjoining and nearby properties. 
(d) The suitability of the properties for the uses proposed viz. a. viz. the suitability of 

the properties for the uses identified by the General Plan. 
(e) Whether a change in the uses allowed for the affected properties will unduly 

affect the uses or proposed uses for adjoining and nearby properties. 
(f) The overall community benefit of the proposed amendment 

 
Noticing.  The applicant has expressed their desire to rezone the subject property and do so in a manner 
which is compliant with the City Code.  As such, notice has been properly issued in the manner outlined 
in the City and State Codes. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission carefully weigh this request for a Land Use Map 
Amendment according to the appropriate tenets of the Utah State Code and the Tooele City Code, 
particularly Section 7-1A-7(1) and render a decision in the best interest of the community with any 
conditions deemed appropriate and based on specific findings to address the necessary criteria for making 
such decisions. 
 
Potential topics for findings that the Commission should consider in rendering a decision: 
 

1. The effect of the proposed application on the character of the surrounding area. 
2. The degree to which the proposed application is consistent with the intent, goals, and 

objectives of any applicable master plan. 
3. The degree to which the proposed application is consistent with the intent, goals, and 

objectives of the Tooele City General Plan. 



 

Tooele Business Park   App. # NA 
Ordinance Amendment Request 3  

4. The degree to which the proposed application is consistent with the requirements and 
provisions of the Tooele City Code. 

5. The suitability of the properties for the uses proposed.  
6. The degree to which the proposed application will or will not be deleterious to the health, 

safety, and general welfare of the general public or the residents of adjacent properties. 
7. The degree to which the proposed application conforms to the general aesthetic and 

physical development of the area. 
8. Whether a change in the uses allowed for the affected properties will unduly affect the 

uses or proposed uses for adjoining and nearby properties. 
9. The overall community benefit of the proposed amendment. 
10. Whether or not public services in the area are adequate to support the subject 

development. 
11. Other findings the Commission deems appropriate to base their decision upon for the 

proposed application. 
 

MODEL MOTIONS  
 
Sample Motion for a Positive Recommendation – “I move we forward a positive recommendation to the 
City Council for the Tooele Business Park Zoning Map and Ordinance Amendment Request by Tooele 
City for the purpose of amending the mapping and conditions of the Tooele City Business Park Zoning 
District, based on the findings and subject to the conditions listed in the Staff Report dated September 18, 
2025.”  
 

1. List any additional findings and conditions… 
 
Sample Motion for a Negative Recommendation – “I move we forward a negative positive 
recommendation to the City Council for the Tooele Business Park Zoning Map and Ordinance 
Amendment Request by Tooele City for the purpose of amending the mapping and conditions of the 
Tooele City Business Park Zoning District, based on the following findings.” 
 

1. List findings… 
       

 
 

 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Exhibit B 
 
 
 

Mapping Pertinent to 
Zoning Map Amendment 



THE FINAL SIZE AND CONFIGURATION 
OF THE RETENTION POND WILL REQUIRE 

EVALUATION BASED UPON FUTURE 
PLANNED TRIBUTARY AREA. THE RETEN-
TION POND SHOULD BE HELD SEPARAT 
BY THE CITY, AND NOT INCLUDED AS 

PART OF ANY INDIVIDUAL LOT

700 S

N 
11

00
 W

S 
12

00
 W

Timpie Rd

W 1220 S

Temporary Culdesac

Parcel #1
6.33 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 110,294

Parcel #2
10.8 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 177,376

LEITNER POMA
Parcel #3

15.35 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 267,458

Parcel #4
14.39 Acres

FAR = 0.4
Bldg. = 250,731

Parcel #5
3.16 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 55,060

Parcel #6
13.74 Acres

FAR = 0.4
Bldg. = 239,406

Parcel #10
4.08 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 72,832

Parcel #13
11.58 Acres

FAR = 0.4
Bldg. = 201,770

Parcel #14
11.03 Acres
FAR = 0.35

Bldg. = 168,163

Parcel #15
19.63 Acres

FAR = 0.4
Bldg. = 342,033

Parcel #16
19.51 Acres

FAR = 0.4
Bldg. = 3398,942

 Parcel #20
5.66 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 98,620

Parcel #21
16.2 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 282,269

Parcel #19
8.76 Acres
FAR = 0.35

Bldg. = 133,595

Parcel #18
7.65 Acres
FAR = 0.35

Bldg. = 116,632

Parcel #17
71.99 Acres

FAR = 0.4
Bldg. = 1,254,354

Parcel #22
1.69 Acres
FAR = 0.35

Bldg. = 20,277

Parcel #7
2.87 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 50,007
Parcel #11
4.45 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 77,537

Parcel #12
18.5 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 322,344

Parcel #8
3.04 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 52,969

Parcel #9
15.05 Acres

FAR = 0.4
Bldg. = 262,231

Light
Industrial

Heavy
Industrial

Retail / 
Office

Retention / 
Detention

Well Site

1:400 SCALE

FU
TU

R
E

  H
IG

H
W

A
Y 

11
0

’ R
O

W

66’ ROW

66’ ROW

66
’ R

O
W

66
’ R

O
W

Statistical Summary

Retail / Office

Acres

55.7 964,244

229.24 3,931,617Light / Heavy Industrial

*Note: FAR = Floor Area Ratio

Bldg.

Tooele Business Park
SITE PLAN | Concept B.4
Tooele, UT
September 4, 2025

N
orth



Parcel #1
6.33 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 110,294

Parcel #2
10.8 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 177,376

LEITNER POMA
Parcel #3

15.35 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 267,458

Parcel #4
14.39 Acres

FAR = 0.4
Bldg. = 250,731

Parcel #5
3.16 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 55,060

Parcel #6
13.74 Acres

FAR = 0.4
Bldg. = 239,406

Parcel #10
4.08 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 72,832

Parcel #13
11.58 Acres

FAR = 0.4
Bldg. = 201,770

Parcel #14
11.03 Acres
FAR = 0.35

Bldg. = 168,163

Parcel #15
19.63 Acres

FAR = 0.4
Bldg. = 342,033

Parcel #16
19.51 Acres

FAR = 0.4
Bldg. = 3398,942

 Parcel #20
5.66 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 98,620

Parcel #21
16.2 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 282,269

Parcel #19
8.76 Acres
FAR = 0.35

Bldg. = 133,595

Parcel #18
7.65 Acres
FAR = 0.35

Bldg. = 116,632

Parcel #17
71.99 Acres

FAR = 0.4
Bldg. = 1,254,354

Parcel #22
1.69 Acres
FAR = 0.35

Bldg. = 20,277

Parcel #7
2.87 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 50,007
Parcel #11
4.45 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 77,537

Parcel #12
18.5 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 322,344

Parcel #8
3.04 Acres
FAR = 0.4

Bldg. = 52,969

Parcel #9
15.05 Acres

FAR = 0.4
Bldg. = 262,231

Retail / 
Office

Retention / 
Detention

Well Site

1:400 SCALE

Heavy
Industrial

Light
Industrial

FU
TU

R
E

  H
IG

H
W

A
Y 

11
0

’ R
O

W

66’ ROW

66’ ROW

66
’ R

O
W

66
’ R

O
W

Statistical Summary

Retail / Office

Acres

55.7 964,244

229.24 3,931,617Light / Heavy Industrial

*Note: FAR = Floor Area Ratio

Bldg.

Tooele Business Park
SITE PLAN | Concept B.4
Tooele, UT
September 4, 2025

N
orth



Highway Alignments

UDOT Proposed Highway Alignment

Tooele Proposed Highway Alignment

Highway 36

1833’ R

R = 2000’

R = 2000’

1:600 SCALE

Tooele Business Park
SITE PLAN | Concept B.4
Tooele, UT
September 4, 2025

N
orth



 
 
 
 

Exhibit C 
 
 
 

Tooele Business Park Engineering Review 
 
 



 

 

11456 South Temple Drive 
Suite 200 
South Jordan, UT 84095 
 
Tel  801.270.5777 
www.Psomas.com 

 

August 6, 2025 
 

 

 

John Perez, MPA 

Economic Development Director 

Tooele City Corporation 

90 North Main Street 

Tooele, UT 84074 

 

Re: Preliminary Engineering for the Concept Tooele Business Park 

 

Dear John: 

 

The following report provides a preliminary engineering assessment of the proposed Tooele 

Business Park located in Tooele, Utah. This report addresses high-level site access, site 

grading and earthwork, stormwater drainage features and potential retention/detention, water 

requirements, and sanitary sewer loading. 

 

 

SITE ACCESS 

 

The existing site lies in southwest Tooele and is bounded by the Tooele Army Depot to the 

south, Union Pacific Railroad mainline track to the west, current industrial businesses to the 

north, and residential subdivisions to the east. Site access is from the future highway 

(currently, 1100 West) from both the north and south. The southern end of the highway will 

connect to Highway 36 within the federal parcel. The site can also be alternatively accessed 

from the north on 1200 West and from three (3) roads (W 700 S, Timpie Road, and W 1220 

S) coming from the east through the residential neighborhoods. The 3 access points from the 

east all connect to the retail/office parcels along the east edge of the development. 

 

 

GRADING AND EARTHWORK 

 

The existing site slopes to the west-northwest at an approximate slope of 3.6 percent. 

Currently, there are native grasses and shrubs with miscellaneous 

unimproved roads and small drainage(s) throughout the site. Preliminary 

earthwork and grading numbers are based on the existing site topography 

and the concept layout located in Appendix A. 

Balancing the Natural and Built Environment 



 

Tooele City 

Page 2 of 4 

August 6, 2025 

Preliminary Engineering for the Concept Tooele Business Park 

 

Grading/earthwork methodology includes topsoil stripping, site roads, and building pad 

development. Topsoil stripping includes removal of the top 6 inches across the site. Road 

volumes include removal of native material down to subgrade. Lot grading and building pad 

cut to fill volumes are based on the resulting surface post topsoil stripping being shaped to 

drain as well as creation of a flat, constructable building pad for the building square footage 

identified in the planning stage for each parcel. Estimated cut to fill volumes across the 

whole site are shown in Table 1 below. 

 

Table 1 – Preliminary Site Grading/Earthwork Cut to Fill Volumes 

Earthwork Type Volume (CY) 

Topsoil Stripping (Cut) 266,000 

Roads (Cut) 71,700 

Lot Grading/Building Pads (Cut to Fill) 1,218,000 

  

Stormwater ponds will also be necessary and are not included in Table 1 above. Based on 

existing topography and the Concept Plan, the site was evaluated using a regional storage 

pond and local storage ponds for those parcels that do not gravity drain to the regional 

storage pond. Parcels requiring local storage ponds are Parcels 1, 2, and 3. A breakdown of 

the approximate cut volumes is shown in Table 2 below. 

 

Table 2 – Preliminary Site Stormwater Detention/Retention Cut Volumes 

 

Basin 

Release 10-yr Storm 

at 0.2cfs/acre (CY) 

Retain 80% 

(CY) 

Retain 100-yr, 24-hr 

Storm Onsite (CY) 

Parcel 1 460 860 1,860 

Parcel 2 790 1,470 3,170 

Parcel 3 1,150 2,100 4,490 

Regional Storage 

(Parcels 4 – 22) 

 

21,550 

 

40,300 

 

89,600 

 

 

STORMWATER  

 

Storm calculations for the Concept Plan were completed based on the Rational Method. 

Based on the size of the development, this method is conservative and further analysis using 

other methods may reduce the size of required storage basins as the design for the site 

progresses. 

 

Stormwater detention/retention was evaluated in three different ways. The first method was 

to detain the 10-year storm and release water at a rate of 0.2 cfs per acre. The second method 

PSOMAS 



 

Tooele City 

Page 3 of 4 

August 6, 2025 

Preliminary Engineering for the Concept Tooele Business Park 

was the Low Impact Development (LID) method, where the 80th percentile storm is retained 

onsite and is additional storage volume above the 10-year storm. The third evaluation was to 

retain 100% onsite the 100-year, 24-hr storm which would be used if there was no viable 

connection to downstream storm infrastructure. The resulting volumes of each method are 

presented in Table 3 below. 

 

Table 3 – Preliminary Site Stormwater Detention/Retention 

 

Basin 

Release 10-yr Storm 

at 0.2cfs/acre (Ac-ft) 

Retain 80% 

(Acre-ft) 

Retain 100-yr, 24-hr 

Storm Onsite (Acre-ft) 

Parcel 1 0.29 0.53 1.15 

Parcel 2 0.49 0.91 1.96 

Parcel 3 0.69 1.30 2.78 

Regional Storage 

(Parcels 4 – 22) 

 

13.4 

 

25.0 

 

55.5 

 

Proposed stormwater retention/detention basins as well as site drainage channels can be 

viewed on the Concept Stormwater Drainage Plan within Appendix A. 

 

 

WATER 

 

Water requirements for the proposed development were calculated based on the Tooele City 

Drinking Water Master Plan dated May 2021. Specifically, Equivalent Residential 

Connections (ERC) for both light industrial and neighborhood commercial in conjuction with 

Table 1-2: Peak Day Indoor and Outdoor Demand Level of Service were used to calculate 

total site water demand. ERC values and Table 1-2 and the Concept Site Water and Sewer 

Plan are located in Appendix B. 

 

Based on the requirements of the Tooele City Drinking Water Master Plan, the total 

development will require approximately 1,461,555 gallons per day during peak day which 

equates to approximatley 1,014 gpm. 

 

Tooele provides 4,000 gpm for 4 hours from tank 3, and therefore, no additional volume of 

fire water storage should be needed. 

 

The site will require an equilization storage of  600,700 gallons.   

 

Based on the Tooele City Drinking Water Master Plan there is a planned 16-inch 

transmission line in S 900 W (See Figure 7-1 in Appendix B).  Also, a well is located onsite 

PSOMAS 



 

Tooele City 

Page 4 of 4 

August 6, 2025 

Preliminary Engineering for the Concept Tooele Business Park 

within Parcel #4 of the Concept Plan. Any future sanitary sewer line must be located a 

minimum of 25 feet away from the well. 

 

 

SANITARY SEWER 

 

The sanitary sewer requirements for the Concept Plan were evaluated. The following 

assumptions were made for this evaluation: 

• Industrial – 2 employees per 1,000 sf each shift for 3 shifts, no showers 

• Office – 6 employees per 1,000 sf 

• 15 gpd sewer/person 

 

Based on the above assumptions and the building square footages as indicated on the concept 

plan, the average sewer load is 445,941 gpd with the peak sewer being 1,114,852 gpd. 

 

The Concept Site Water and Sewer Plan can be viewed in Appendix B. 

 

Should you have any questions regarding this preliminary assessment, please do not hesitate 

to contact me at (435)224-2967. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 
 

 
 

Shaun Boone, PE 

Sr Project Manager 
 

 

 

 

 

PSOMAS 

PSOMAS 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A 

Tooele Business Park – Concept Stormwater Plan 

 

 

PSOMAS 



Tooele Business Park 
SITE PLAN I Concept B.4 
Tooele, UT 
April 2025 

CONCEPT 
STORMWATER 

DRAINAGE PLAN 

Statistical Summary 

Retail / Office 

Acres 

55.7 

229 .24 

Bldg . JZf 

964,244 

3,931 ,617 

Parcel #1 
6.33 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

'l 
Commercial / Industrial 

*Note: FAR= Floor Area Ratio 

THE FINAL SIZE AND CONFIGURATION 
OF THE RETENTION POND WILL REQUIRE 

EVALUATION BASED UPON FUTURE 
PLANNED TRIBUTARY AREA. THE RETEN­
TION POND SHOULD BE HELD SEPARAT 

BY THE CITY, AND NOT INCLUDED AS 
PART OF ANY INDIVIDUAL LOT 

SINGLE PARCEL 
RETENTION BASIN 

CULVERT 

DRAINAGE CHANNEL 

FLOW DIRECTION 

□ --.. 

Bldg . = 110,294 
._________ 

□ 
Parcel #2 
10.8 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

Bldg.= 177,376 JZf 

._________ 

Retention / 
Detention 

Parcel #5 

LEITNER POMA 
Parcel #3 

15.35 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 JZf 

Bldg.= 267,458 

._________ 

', ' 7 
~ 

····==· 1 ~ l 
Parcel #4 ,._________ I 

14.39 Acres 
,._________ FAR= 0.4 

Bldg. = 250,731 JZf 3.16 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

Bldg. = 55,060 .0: 
~ ~ =====~=....:.-:-

I 

Well Site 

Parcel #13 
11 .58 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 Parcel #6 

13.74 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

Bldg . = 239,406 JZf Parcel #9 
15.05 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

Bldg . = 262,231 JZf 

Pm: l2 \ ;Bldg.= 201 ,770 

18.5 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 ,._________ 

Bldg 
O 

: 44~ \ \ 

Parcel #15 
19.63 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

Bldg . = 342,033 JZf 

._________ 

..=Parcel #7 
2.87 Acres ,._________ 

1 
FAR= 0.4 

Bldg.= 50,007 JZf 

Parcel #8 
3.04 Acres ,._________ 
FAR= 0.4 

◄ Bldg . = 52,969 JZf ~ 

Parcel #16 
19.51 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

Bldg. = 3398,942JZf 

Parcel #20 
5.66 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

Bldg. = 98,620 JZf 
._________ 

,.- Parcel # I 0 
4.08 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 ,._________ 

Bldg . = 72,832 JZf 

Parcel #11 7 
4.45 Acres ~ 
FAR= 0.4 / 

Bldg .= 77 37 JZf 
◄ 

66' ROW 

66' ROW 

Commercial I 
Industrial 

Parcel #17 
71.99 Acres 

FAR= 0.4 
Bldg . = 1,254,35421 

Parcel #21 
16.2 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

Bldg. = 282,269 JZf 

Temporary Culdesac 

Parcel # 14 
11 .03 Acres 
FAR= 0.35 

ldg. = 168, 16 I JZf 

._________ 

Retail / 
Office 

Parcel #18 
7.65 Acres 
FAR= 0.35 

Bldg . = 116,632 

._________ 

Parcel #19 
8.76 Acres 
FAR= 0.35 ;\ 

~l 
Bldg.= 133,595 JZf 

s 
I 
lJ 
I 
w 
a 
:) 
I­
:) 
LL 

W 1220 S 
I 

----➔ Parcel #22 
1.69 Acres 
FAR= 0.35 

Bldg . = 20,277 JZf 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B 

Tooele City Drinking Water Master Plan Information 

Tooele Business Park – Concept Water and Sewer Plan 

PSOMAS 



 

 

 

Per the Tooele City Drinking Water Master Plan (May 2021): 

• 2 Equivalent Residential Connections (ERC) per connection for light industrial 

• 4 ERC per neighborhood commercial  

 

Table 1-2: Peak Day Indoor and Outdoor Demand Level of Service 

Indoor Peak Day Demand 245 gpd per ERC 

Outdoor Peak Day Demand 1,035 gpd per ERC 

 

 

 

PSOMAS 



A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A
A

A

A

A

A
A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A
A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A
A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A A

A

A

A
A

A
A

A

A

A

A

A
A

A
A

A

A
A

A

A

AA

A

A

A

A

A

A

A
A

AA

AA

UT

UT

UT

UT

UT

UT

"M

"M

"M

"M

"M

"M

"M

"M

"M

"M

"M

"M

"M

"M

"M

[Ú

[Ú

[Ú

A

^

A
A

A

A A

M̂

A

A
^ M

A

A
A

A

A

A

A

A

A

>

>

>

No. 55
12 in

No. 66

No. 70

No. 72

No. 25

No. 47

No. 48
No. 52

No. 39

No. 60 No. 61

No. 17

No. 23

No. 20

No. 18

No. 4

No. 46

No. 44

No. 62

No. 6
8 in

N
o.

 3
8 

in

N
o.

 1
10

 in

N
o. 5
8 in

N
o.

 2
8 

in

N
o.

 7
10

 in

N
o.

 1
3

12
 in

N
o.

 1
4

12
 in

No. 21
12 in

No
. 1

2
12

 in

No. 22
12 in

N
o.

 1
6

12
 in

N
o.

 1
9

12
 in

No
. 1

5
14

 in

No. 8

12 in

No. 9

12 in

No. 10
16 in

No. 75
10 in

N
o.

 2
8

10
 in

N
o.

 2
4

12
 in

No. 76
8 in

No. 74

10 in

No. 3212 in

N
o.

 7
7

8 
in

No. 50
12 in

N
o.

 2
6

12
 in

N
o.

 4
3

8 
in

N
o.

 3
5

16
 in

N
o.

 3
6

16
 in

N
o.

 7
3

8 
in

N
o. 30
8 in

N
o.

 6
9

20
 in

N
o.

 6
7

24
 in

N
o.

 4
2

10
 in

No. 68
16 in

N
o.

 3
1

8 
in

No
. 4

1
12

 in

N
o.

 3
4

8 
in

N
o.

 2
9

10
 in

No. 40
12 in

No. 63
10 in

N
o.

 2
7

8 
in

No. 
49

12
 in

No. 45
12 in

N
o.

 3
8

16
 in

N
o.

 7
1

16
 in

N
o. 37
20 in

No. 
33

12
 in

N
o. 57

12 in

No
. 8

2
24

 in

No. 
65

30
 in

No. 
64

30
 in

No. 59
16 in

E AVE

JAMES WAY

JEEP R
D

F AVE

TC00634

H
W

Y
 3

6

TC00633

ROGERS ST

DIRT RD

600 N

JEEP RD

580 S

12
00

 W

700 N

A
N

TE
LO

P
E

 A
V

E

CLEMENTE W
AY

810 S

D
EA

N
 A

VE

1790 N

1970 N

70
 W

62
0 

E

880 S

670 N 670 N 69
0 

E

30
0 

W

50
0 

W

57
0 

E

1480 N

7T
H

 S
T

1380 N

W
H

IT
A

K
E

R
 D

R

850 N

CANDELLARIA DR

1720 N

DUROCHER LN

13
40

 E

1930 N

DAW
SON DR

1430 N

960 S

1480 N

1430 N

400 N

A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
 W

AY

LINDEN ST

MEADOWS DR

APARICIO DR

30
0 

W

380 E

GRIFFITH ST
OQUIRRH AVE

JE
EP R

D

B AVE

D
R

O
U

B
AY

 R
D

PA
U

LO
S

 B
LV

D

270 S

EASTR
ID

G
E D

R

C AVE

LINDY WAY

60
0 

E

20
0 

E

1310 N

25
0 

W

D AVE

890 N

K
AY

 L
N

1480 N

CEDAR ST

62
0 

E

PIONEER AVE

U
PL

AN
D

 D
R

53
0 

W

620 N

810 N

BERRA 
BLV

D

DEER FLAT RD

VINE ST

UTAH AVE

COMMANDER BLVD

300 S

DATE ST

ELM ST

KINGSTON DR

1530 N

HIGHLAND DR

860 N

420 S

J AVE
63

0 
E

1260 N

TC00632

81
0 

W

1700 N

200 S

50
 W

27
0 

W

1280 N

OAK LN

PA
R

K
W

AY
 A

V
E

C
E

D
A

R
W

O
O

D
 R

D

650 N

68
0 

W

980 N

HAVASU ST

79
0 

W

600 N

90
0 

W

1810 N

TA
H

O
E

 S
T

98
0 

W

880 S

38
0 

W

PINE CANYON RD

N
E

W
M

A
R

K
 D

R

900 S

69
0 

E

SO
UTH

W
EST 

DR

78
0 

W

HW
Y 3

6

P
IN

E
H

U
R

S
T 

AV
E

310 E

N
O

B
LE

 R
D

O
V

E
R

LA
N

D
 R

D

BLU
ER

ID
G

E D
R

SETTLEMENT CANYON RD

17
0 

W

480 S

52
5 

W

88
0 

E

W
H

IT
E

 P
IN

E
 D

R

450 S

B
R

O
A

D
W

AY
 A

V
E

N
E

LS
O

N
 A

V
E

DRYSDALE WAY

SUNDOWN LN

AL
LE

Y

ALLEY

22
0 

W

2000 N

ARROW ST

ANSON D
R

770 S

49
0 

E

AARON DR

42
5 

W

PINE CANYON RD

WALDEN DR

20
0 

W

1110 S

FI
R

S
T 

S
T

840 N

1000 S

21
0 

W

C
ER

R
O

N
I W

AY

2200 N

910 N

2100 N

970 N

MAPLE ST

ALFRED DR

65
0 

E

78
0 

E

55
0 

E

KI
N

D
E

R
 R

D

O
A

K
 C

T

FOX RUN DR

C
O

LE
M

A
N

 S
T

780 N

VISTA CIR

DANIEL DR

700 S

60
0 

W

13
50

 E

LIS
A W

AY

700 N

VALLEY VIEW DR

AL
LE

Y

C
E

N
TU

R
Y 

D
R

BUZIANIS WAY

30
0 

W

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

 A
IR

 L
N

27
0 

E

I AVE

H AVE

C
LE

M
E

N
S

 W
AY

500 S

J AVE

K AVE

L AVE

1290 N

G AVE

45
0 

E

12
50

 E

MEMORY LN

54
0 

E

1370 N

H AVE

980 N

BIRCH ST

93
0 

W

TA
N

N
ER

 W
AY

620 S

1900 N

930 N

240 S

520 S

2400 N

14
0 

W

CRESTVIEW DR

B
R

O
A

D
W

AY
 AV

E

SI
X

TH
 S

T

FI
FT

H
 S

T

TH
IR

D
 S

T

86
0 

W

SE
C

O
N

D
 S

T

740 N

770 N

40
0 

W

BUFFALO BLVD

290 N

FO
U

R
TH

 S
T

68
0 

W

260 N

220 N

F AVE

60 S

FO
U

R
TH

 S
T

64
0 

W

3 OCLOCK DR

600 N

UTAH AVE

FI
R

S
T 

S
T

400 S

180 N

94
0 

W

600 S

750 N

330 W

40
0 

E

230 N

500 N

SLATE DR

880 N

540 N

60 W

84
0 

E

410 W

540 S 550 S

10
50

 W

12
30

 E

15
0 

E

40
0 

W

1570 N

1420 N

SI
X

TH
 S

T

1140 S

30
0 

W

C
O

LAVITO
 W

AY

1080 S

B
E

VA
N

 W
AY

1180 N

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E

ASPEN ST

HAYLIE LN

850 N

930 N

1000 N

48
0 

W

40
0 

E

O
AKRIDG

E DR

HW
Y 112

13
30

 E

G
A

R
D

E
N

 S
T

C
O

LU
M

B
IA

 D
R

27
0 

W

740 S

73
0 

W

1530 N

TOOELE BLVD

72
0 

W

M
C

FA
R

LA
N

D
 S

T

340 S

370 S

700 N

420 S

470 S

1680 N

170 W

TIMPIE RD

440 S

15
0 

W

SKYLINE DR

1540 N
TC00635

10
00

 W

N
O

TT
IN

G
H

AM
 D

R

TC
00638

M
AY

O
 D

R

13
0 

W

50
 W

90
 W

FI
FT

H
 S

T

1160 N

1620 N

JA
DE

 S
T

DIMAGGIO DR

IR
O

N 
ST

58
0 

E

HA
LI

TE
 S

T

18
0 

E

IR
O

N 
ST

BR
EN

DA
 P

L

KE
RN

IT
E 

ST

1480 N

1420 N

LO
DE

ST
O

N
E 

W
AY

SE
C

O
N

D
 S

T

TH
IR

D
 S

T

1860 N

JA
KE

 C
T

CANYO
N RD

35
0 

W

G
A

R
D

E
N

 S
T

G
AR

NE
T 

ST

14
00

 E

95
0 

W

JA
DE

 S
T

40
0 

W

47
0 

E

TIGER DR

770 S

SP
R

IN
G

 M
EA

D
O

W
 D

R

580 N

73
0 

W

FE
LD

SP
AR

 S
T

VAN DYKE WAY

10
10

 W

69
0 

W

B
E

R
R

A 
B

LV
D

1860 N

7T
H

 S
T

SOUTH MOUNTAIN RD

B
R

O
O

K
 A

V
E

10
0 

E

10
0 

W

12
0 

W

37
0 

W

660 S

JE
EP

 R
D

500 S

500 N

VA
L V

IS
TA D

R

1220 S

30
 W

80
 E

JEEP RD

MARVISTA LN

TAMARACK DR

21
0 

E

65
0 

E

40
 E

69
0 

E

40
0 

E

WASATCH WAY

DALEY DR

1910 N

BEN
C

H
 VIEW

 D
R

D
EER

 H
O

LLO
W

 R
D

STANSBURY AVE

DETENTIO
N D

R

14
80

 E13
00

 E

14
30

 E

13
80

 E

SALTON ST

ONTARIO ST

13
70

 E

LA
K

E
V

IE
W

 A
V

E

36
0 

W

TO
O

ELE BLVD

970 N

2000 N

KE
AR

NI
TE

 S
T

KI
R

A 
DR

BR
AN

D
Y 

LN

M
ILLBURN

 D
R

97
0 

W

10
50

 W

MCKELLAR ST

SMELTER RD

810 N

32
0 

W

FA
IR

LA
N

E
 D

R

80
 E

KE
AR

NI
TE

 S
T

C
O

P
P

E
R

 C
A

N
Y

O
N

 D
R

HANGER RD

TC00673

M
IDDLE CANYON RD

E AVE

11
00

 W

40
0 

W

700 S

10
00

 W
TC

00
64

1

ELK M
EAD

O
W

 LO
O

P

10
00

 W

TC
00

63
7

ERIC
SON R

D

D
R

O
U

B
AY

 R
D

CASSITY DR

GRIMM HILL RD

TO
O

E
LE

 B
LV

D

TC
00

63
6

M
A

IN
 S

T

12
00

 W

EM
ER

AL
D 

RD

EM
ER

AL
D

 R
D

LEFT FORK SETTLEMENT CANYON RD

FR
ANKS D

R

G
O

LF
 C

O
U

R
S

E
 R

D

AI
R

ST
R

IP

BL
U

E
 P

E
A

K
 R

D

LIN
KS G

O
LF C

O
U

R
SE R

D

SILC
OX R

D

ANACONDA RD

IN
DU

ST
RI

AL
 L

O
O

P 
R

D

Z6

Z5

Z4

Z2

Z1East

Z7

Z10

Z0

Z11

Z12

Z9

Z13

Z8East

Z3

Z8Middle

Z8West

Z7East

Z0Memory Z1West

TOOELE CITY DRINKING WATER MASTER PLAN RECOMMENDED CAPITAL FACILITY PROJECTS
FIGURE
7-1

Legend
Existing System
[Ú Booster

"M Source

UT Tank

A PRVs and Control Valves
Pipes

""
"")
))

) Pressure Zones

City Limits

Master Plan Projects

A PRV

M Pump

^ Tank

A Valve

#0 Water Treatment

> Well

City Request
Existing Fire Flow
Future Developer - Minimum Size
Future Developer - Upsize
Future Transmission

0 10.5 Mile

¦

D
oc

um
en

t P
at

h:
 H

:\P
ro

je
ct

s\
14

9 
- T

oo
el

e 
C

ity
\4

8.
10

0 
- 2

01
9 

W
at

er
 M

as
te

r P
la

n\
G

IS
\T

oo
el

e 
C

ap
ita

l F
ac

ilit
y 

P
la

n.
m

xd
D

at
e:

 4
/2

4/
20

21

^

M

A

>

No. 
49

12
 inNo. 51

12 in

No. 50
12 in

No. 46

No. 52

No. 48

No. 47

All pipes shown parallel to existing pipes are intended
to be constructed in addition to the existing pipes, rather
than replacing the existing pipes.

Other projects not mapped include replacing aging pipes
on an annual basis, and regularly evaluating and 
rehabilitating wells and springs.

HllRSER 
& llLLER 

LUCEmc 
ENGINEERS 

/ 

I 

I 

I r 

f 

-------

/ 
, 

/ 

/ 

I 

,, 

---

--/, 
'/ 

/ 

/, 

i -

f 

• 

CJ 



Tooele Business Park 
SITE PLAN I Concept B.4 
Tooele, UT 
April 2025 

Statistical Summary Acres 

CONCEPT SITE 
WATER AND SEWER 

PLAN 

Bldg . JZf 

Retail/ Office 55.7 964,244 

Commercial / Industrial 229 .24 3,931,617 

Parcel # 1 
6.33 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

Bldg . = 110,294 JZf 
*Note: FAR= Floor Area Ratio 

THE FINAL SIZE AND CONFIGURATION 
OF THE RETENTION POND WILL REQUIRE 

EVALUATION BASED UPON FUTURE 
PLANNED TRIBUTARY AREA. THE RETEN­
TION POND SHOULD BE HELD SEPARAT 

BY THE CITY, AND NOT INCLUDED AS 
PART OF ANY INDIVIDUAL LOT 

BURIED WATER PIPE 

BURIED SANITARY 
SEWER PIPE 

Parcel #2 
10.8 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

Bldg.= 177,376 JZf 

Retention / 
Detention 

Parcel #5 
3.16 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 , 

I 

LEITNER POMA 
Parcel #3 

15.35 Acres 
FAR = 0.4 JZf 

Bldg.= 267,458 

Parcel #4 
14.39 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

Bldg. = 250,731 JZf 

'l 
I 

BURIED SANITARY 
SEWER LATERAL 

: 

Bldg.= 55,060 i~~~~~~F~~~:::-- ;:::::::::==,:=r==~~~~=il 

Parcel #14 

1

11 .03 Acres 
FAR= 0.35 I Parcel #6 

13.74 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

Parcel #13 
11 .58 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

Bldg.= 201,770 JZf ldg. = 168, 163 JZf 

I 

I 
Parcel #15 
19.63 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

Bldg . = 342,033 JZf 

Bldg . = 239,406 JZf 

Parcel #7 
2.87 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

Bldg.= 50,007 JZf 

Parcel #8 
3.04 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

Bldg . = 52,969 JZf ~ 
, -----------------------

,, I 

Parcel #16 
19.51 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

Bldg. = 3398,942JZf 

Parcel #9 
15.05 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

Bldg . = 262,231 JZf 

Parcel #12 
18.5 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

Bldg.= 322,344JZf 

Parcel #10 
4.08 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

Bldg . = 72,832 JZf 

Parcel #11 
4.45 Acres 
FAR= 0.4 

Bldg.= 77,537 JZf 

Commercial I 
Industrial 

Parcel #17 
71.99 Acres 

FAR= 0.4 
Bldg . = 1,254,35421 

Temporary Culdesac 

L 

Retail / 
Office 

Parcel #18 
7.65 Acres 
FAR= 0.35 

Bldg. = 116,632 JZf 

Parcel #19 
8.76 Acres 
FAR= 0.35 

Bldg.= 133,595 JZf 













































TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 

RESOLUTION 2025-80 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING AND RATIFYING AN 
AGREEMENT WITH SPEAKMANS CONCRETE SERVICE, LLC, FOR THE TOOELE 
LIBRARY STAMPED CONCRETE PROJECT, EAST. 
  
 WHEREAS, Tooele City desires at the campus of the Tooele City Library to 
remove approximately 3,025 square feet of existing sod and in its place install 
approximately 2,700 square feet of new colored, stamped concrete and related 
appurtenances (“the Project”); and,   

WHEREAS, the City, solicited public bids for the Project based upon price and 
qualifications in accordance with the City’s procurement policies and procedures, as well 
as the procedures and requirements of UCA §11-39-101 et seq.; and,  

WHEREAS, Speakmans Concrete Service, LLC, with a total cost proposal of 
$38,250.00, was evaluated as the lowest responsive responsible bidder whose bid met 
the requirement and criteria set forth by the City (see Bid Tabulation attached as Exhibit 
A); and,  

WHEREAS, the Mayor’s notice of award and signing of the agreement was 
necessary as time was of the essence, and thus was in the best interest of the City; and,  

WHEREAS, the City Administration requests an additional 10% as contingency (in 
the amount of $3,825.00) for change orders for changed conditions which may arise 
during the project, as reviewed and approved by the Mayor:  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that: 

1. the City Council hereby approves and an agreement (attached as Exhibit B) with 

Speakmans Concrete Service, LLC, in the amount of $38,250.00 for the Tooele 

Library Stamped Concrete Project, East, and the Mayor’s notice of award and 

signature are hereby ratified; and, 

 

2. an additional 10% contingency (in the amount of $3,825.00) is hereby approved 

which may be used for changed conditions as reviewed and approved by the 

Mayor.  

This Resolution shall become effective upon passage, without further publication, 

by authority of the Tooele City Charter. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Resolution is passed by Tooele City Council this 

____ day of ___________________ 2025. 

  



TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 
(For) (Against) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING:  ___________________________________________ 
 

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
(Approved) (Disapproved) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Shilo Baker, City Recorder 
        
 
           S E A L 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: ___________________________ 
    Matthew C. Johnson, City Attorney 
 

  



 

 

 

 

Exhibit A 

 

 

Bid Tabulation 

 

  





 

 

 

 

Exhibit B 

 

 

Agreement 
 

 









TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

RESOLUTION 2025-81 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING AN AGREEMENT 
CHANGE ORDER NO. 5 WITH BROKEN ARROW CONSTRUCTION FOR ENGLAND 
ACRES PARK PHASE III. 
 
 WHEREAS, on October 16, 2024, the City Council approved Resolution 2024-84, 
approving an agreement with Broken Arrow for the construction and installation of parking 
lot and landscaping improvements in Phase III of England Acres Park (the “Phase III 
Project”); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City solicited public bids for construction of the Phase III Project 
in accordance with the procedures of §11-39-101 et seq., Utah Code Annotated, and the 
Tooele City Purchasing Policies and Procedures; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with the Phase III Project, the City Administration has 
determined that installing additional sod, topsoil, sprinklers, concrete, and other items are 
necessary and in the interest of Tooele City, and recommends the approval of Change 
Order No. 5 for the Phase III Project with Broken Arrow, in the amount of $167,160.19 
(see Change Order No. 5 attached as Exhibit A); and, 
 

WHEREAS, compliance with the notice and bidding procedures of UCA §11-39-
101 et seq., is not required for the Change Order No. 5 because the project cost does not 
reach the statutory cost threshold of about $240,000; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Section VIII of the Tooele City Purchasing Policies and Procedures 
provides for the approval of change orders, as follows:  
 

VIII. CHANGE ORDERS.  The City recognizes that change orders are a 
normal component of the procurement process...  
 A. Modifications to approved contracts shall be deemed change 
orders when the Mayor and Purchasing Agent determine that: 1. The 
modification is related in some manner to the same or similar project 
approved in the contract, and 2. Treating the modification as a change 
order would maximize efficiency in completion of and cost savings to the 
City.   
 B. Change Order approval process: ... 2. Individual change orders 
$30,000 and above shall be approved by the Mayor and City Council after 
consultation with the responsible department head...provided the change 
order is within the approved project budget. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Purchasing Policies and Procedures allow for Change Order No. 
5 because the Mayor and Parks and Recreation Director have determined that the change 



order is related to the agreement for the Phase III Project, and the change order will 
maximize efficiency in Project completion and result in cost savings; and, 
 

WHEREAS, City Council approval is required for all agreements and change 
orders in excess of the statutory cost threshold of $30,000 established in TCC §1-5-10 
(see also TCC §1-6-4, §1-14-4, §1-22-4); and,  
 
 WHEREAS, on May 7, 2025, the City Council approved Resolution 2025-32, 
approving a Change Order No. 1 to the Phase III Project agreement; and, 
 

WHEREAS, on May 7, 2025, the City Council approved Resolution 2025-40, 
approving a Change Order No. 2 to the Phase III Project agreement, for the Oquirrh Hills 
Project; 
 

WHEREAS, on May 21, 2025, the City Council approved Resolution 2025-46, 
approving a Change Order No. 3 to the Phase III Project agreement, for the Oquirrh Hills 
Project; 
 

WHEREAS, Change Order No. 4 to the Phase III Project agreement was for an 
amount less than the statutory cost threshold of $30,000 established in TCC §1-5-10 (see 
also TCC §1-6-4, §1-14-4, §1-22-4), and thus had no accompanying resolution; 

 
WHEREAS, the City has complied with the requirements of the Tooele City 

Purchasing Policies and Procedures: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that 
the City Council hereby approves Change Order No. 5 with Broken Arrow Construction, 
in the amount of $167,160.19, for the Phase III Project. 
 
 This Resolution shall become effective upon passage, without further publication, 
by authority of the Tooele City Charter. 
    
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Resolution is passed by the Tooele City Council this 
____ day of _______________, 2025.  



TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 
 

(For)           (Against) 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING:  ___________________________________________ 
 

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
(Approved)         (Disapproved) 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Shilo Baker, City Recorder 
        
 
           S E A L 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: ___________________________ 
    Matthew C. Johnson, City Attorney 
  



 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 
 
 

Broken Arrow Change Order #5 Cost Proposal 
 



Project:
JOB #:
Address:
Start Date:
Finish Date:

1. 135,624.88$                  

2. 6,384.72$                      
2. 6,819.84$                      
3. 9,519.75$                      
4. 8,811.00$                      

167,160.19$                  

1,427,406.78$                Summary of Orders

534,805.66$                   Change Order No. 1

167,160.19$                   Change Order No. 2

2,129,372.63$                Change Order No. 3

Change Order No. 4

Change Order No. 5

ADD - Install Sprinklers, 4' Topsoil & Sod - Includes: 2 EA Controller w/Enclosure & Metered Pedestal) 
            (Does Not Include Irrigation Point of Connection Item (58,459 SF x $2.32)

Original Contract Amount: Amount Contract Calendar Days

ADD - Additional Concrete Installation For Shelter Pads (768 SF x $8.88)
ADD - Additional ADA Handicap Access Ramp w/Base (3 EA x $3,173.25)

ADD - Additional Sidewalk Sidewalk (4" Thick) (719 SF x $8.88)

ADD - 1' Concrete Mow Strip (445 LF x $19.80)

Broken Arrow Inc.                                      Date                                      Project Owner Representative                   Date
____________________________________        _______________                       ____________________________________      _____________

Total Amount:

Broken Arrow Inc.
8960 Clinton Landing Road

Lakepoint, Utah  84074
Main Office: (801) 355-0527
Fax Number: (801) 252-7501

Project Manager:  Sonny Smith
Contact Number:  (435) 241-588

Date: October 2, 2025

CHANGE DIRECTIVE NO. 5

DESCRIPTION

COST AND DURATION SUMMARY

CONTRACT SUMMARY:
Upon signature approval of this Change Order, the contract is hereby modified to include the changes specified herein, and this change order is hereby made a part of the titled 
contract.  The work shall be performed and completed in accordance with the contract documents and the project schedule shall be adjusted as required to allow sufficient time to 
complete the additional work.  Payment terms shall follow the contract agreement terms.  This Change Order shall include labor and materials to complete the work as described.  
The terms and other provisions of the original agreement and/or purchase order which are not expressly changed above are to remain.

ACCEPTED BY: 

January 22, 2025

CHANGE ORDER REQUEST FORM

TO:

Tooele, UT 84074
England Acres Park North Expansion
BC2506
880 N. Seventh Street, Tooele, UT 84074

56,320.00$                     

338,526.37$                   

110,285.29$                   

167,160.19$                   

Revised Contract Calendar Days

Previous Finish Date

New Finish Date

Previous Change Order(s):

This Change Order:

Adjusted Contract Amount:

29,674.00$                     

TBD

Tooele City Corporation
90 North Main Street

This Change Order references additional work outside of the original contract agreement and/or adjusts items within the current 
contract agreement.  The description includes the following:



Feet
0

100
200

NS

W
E

tloader
Text Box
155,997 SF

tloader
Text Box
91,829 SF

tloader
Text Box
13,154 SF

tloader
Text Box
16,082 SF

tloader
Text Box
4,456 SF

tloader
Text Box
3,996 SF

tloader
Text Box
1,795 SF



 

tloader
Image

tloader
Text Box
Total difference between the area shown on the plans and the existing area needing sod and sprinklers is:

64,638 SF



TOOELE CITY CORPORATION 
 

RESOLUTION 2025-82 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING AN AGREEMENT 
WITH SPEAKMAN’S CONCRETE SERVICES FOR THE INSTALLATION OF A 
SIDEWALK ON 200 WEST BETWEEN 500 NORTH AND 600 NORTH. 
 
 WHEREAS, Tooele City desires to install a sidewalk on 200 West, in the area 
between 500 North and 600 North (“the Project”); and,   
 
 WHEREAS, the City obtained three quotes for the Project, with the amounts of the 
quotes coming in at $49,395.00, $77,420.00, and $83,522.25; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Speakman’s Concrete Services, LLC, with a total cost proposal of 
$49,395.00, submitted the lowest quote for the project (attached as Exhibit A), whose 
quote met the requirement and criteria set forth by the City; and, 
 

WHEREAS, given the nature and timing of the project, as well as the overall 
circumstances, time is of the essence for the beginning and completion of the Project 
and, accordingly, it is in the judgment of City Administration that executing the Agreement 
attached as Exhibit B will be more economical and efficient than any alternative, and is in 
the interest of the City in that the Project will ensure the public’s health, welfare, and safety 
in the area of the Project; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City has proceeded in accordance with the City’s procurement 

policies and procedures, as well as the procedures and requirements of UCA §11-39-101 
et seq.; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Administration requests an additional 10% as contingency (in 

the amount of $4,940.00) for change orders for changed conditions which may arise 
during the project, as reviewed and approved by the Mayor: 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOOELE CITY COUNCIL that: 
 

1. the City Council hereby approves and an agreement (attached as Exhibit B) with 

Speakman’s Concrete Services, LLC, in the amount of $49,395.00 for the 

installation of a sidewalk on 200 West between 500 North and 600 North; and, 

 
2. an additional 10% contingency (in the amount of $4,940.00) is hereby approved 

which may be used for changed conditions as reviewed and approved by the 

Mayor.  

 
 This Resolution shall become effective upon passage, without further publication, 
by authority of the Tooele City Charter. 



    
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Resolution is passed by the Tooele City Council this 
____ day of _______________, 2025.  



TOOELE CITY COUNCIL 
 

(For)           (Against) 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
 
 
ABSTAINING:  ___________________________________________ 
 

MAYOR OF TOOELE CITY 
(Approved)         (Disapproved) 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Shilo Baker, City Recorder 
        
 
           S E A L 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: ___________________________ 
    Matthew C. Johnson, City Attorney 
  



 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 
 
 

Speakman’s Concrete Services Quote 

  





 
 
 
 

Exhibit B 
 
 
 

Agreement with Speakman’s Concrete Services 

 
 



































 

City Council Business Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 5 September 17, 2025 

Recorder’s Office 
 

City Council Business Meeting Minutes 

 

Date: September 17, 2025 

Time: 7:00 p.m. 

Place: Tooele City Hall Council Chambers 

90 North Main Street, Tooele City, Utah 

 

Council Members Present 

Justin Brady 

Dave McCall 

Ed Hansen 

Maresa Manzione 

Melodi Gochis 

 

Staff Present 

Mayor Debbie Winn 

Matt Johnson, City Attorney 

Police Chief Adrian Day 

Fire Chief Matt McCoy 

Shannon Wimmer, Finance Director 

Tiffany Day, Mayor’s Executive Assistant 

Shilo Baker, City Recorder 

Loretta Herron, Deputy City Recorder 

Kelley Anderson, Planning Commissioner 

Melanie Hammer, Planning Commissioner 

Chris Sloan, Planning Commissioner 

Paul Hansen, City Engineer 

Jamie Grandpre, Public Works Director 

Nathan Farrer Assistant Public Works Director 

 

Minutes prepared by Alicia Fairbourne 

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

Chairman Brady called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Roll Call 

Dave McCall, Present 

Ed Hansen, Present 

Melodi Gochis, Present 

Maresa Manzione, Present 

Justin Brady, Present 

 

 

 



 

City Council Business Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 5 September 17, 2025 

Recorder’s Office 
 

3. State of the City Address 

Presented by Debbie Winn, Mayor 

Mayor Debbie Winn delivered the State of the City address, reflecting on her eight years in office as 

her second term approached its end. She recalled that Tooele City had once faced serious financial 

strain, which was corrected through a 2018 property tax increase that restored fiscal responsibility, 

reduced reliance on reserves, and allowed for long-term investments. She highlighted paying off all 

Redevelopment Agency debt, ending the city’s lobbyist contract, and focusing on accountable 

economic development. 

She emphasized Tooele’s resilience through challenges such as fires, an earthquake, vandalism, and 

the COVID-19 pandemic. She reported progress on the Midvalley Highway, partnerships for youth 

recreation, beautification efforts downtown, and property purchases for open space and revitalization. 

Public safety was a major theme, with Mayor Winn citing the construction of a new public safety 

building, significant increases in police staffing and pay, and investments in technology such as a 3D 

scanner and license plate recognition cameras. She noted the growth of the fire department under its 

first full-time chief, the dedication of a new fire station, and acquisition of new apparatus and 

equipment. 

She also reviewed infrastructure and public works achievements, including new wells, water line 

replacements, roadway projects, sidewalks, and expanded city equipment. Parks and recreation 

facilities had been significantly improved, with new playgrounds, courts, trails, and community center 

upgrades. She highlighted the “Take Pride Tooele” initiative, the addition of more than 500 trees, and 

ongoing grant-funded projects. 

Mayor Winn credited behind-the-scenes work by departments such as Finance, IT, HR, and the 

Recorder’s Office for maintaining compliance, safeguarding resources, and supporting employees. 

She noted that not a single regular employee was laid off during COVID, and 48 new positions had 

been added over her tenure. 

She emphasized strong partnerships with local organizations, veterans’ groups, the Sons of Utah 

Pioneers, Switchpoint, the Tooele Army Depot, Dugway, and the school district. Economic 

development had also flourished, with new industrial employers, retail businesses, restaurants, and 

hotels. She reported that commercial property tax values had doubled in less than five years without 

offering local tax incentives. 

Mayor Winn concluded by acknowledging ongoing challenges with growth, housing, water, and 

transportation but expressed confidence that Tooele was well prepared with solid plans, funding, and 

a strong community spirit. She thanked staff, the council, volunteers, and residents, and declared that 

the state of the city was strong and its future even brighter.  

4. Public Comment Period 

At 7:37 p.m., Chairman Brady opened the floor for public comments.  

Mr. Tyler Winn, the mayor’s husband, addressed the council. He praised Mayor Winn’s dedication 

and preparation for her State of the City address, noting that she had worked tirelessly to ensure 

nothing was missed. He shared that over the past eight years they had rarely been out of telephone 

range because of her commitment to the city, and he expressed appreciation that she would soon be 

able to retire. 

Mr. Winn commended city employees and volunteers, emphasizing the teamwork that supported the 

mayor and kept the city running effectively. Drawing on his experience as a former member of the 

fire department, he highlighted the dedication of volunteers who responded at all hours, often at 

personal expense, and recognized the professionalism of current fire staff. He also shared a story 



 

City Council Business Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 5 September 17, 2025 

Recorder’s Office 
 

illustrating the heavy workload of the police department, citing a shift in which officers handled 68 

calls. He extended his gratitude to the parks department for their visible improvements throughout the 

city. 

Mr. Winn closed by encouraging residents to be thoughtful and deliberate when voting for future city 

leaders, urging them to research candidates carefully to ensure continued strong leadership for Tooele 

City. 

Mayor Winn presented an award to Fire Chief Matt McCoy. She noted that he had been hired in June 

2022 as Tooele City’s first full-time fire chief and had since taken on numerous major projects. She 

highlighted his pivotal role in the design, coordination, and completion of Fire Station No. 3, which 

was finished in April 2025 on time and within budget. Mayor Winn stated that the plaque, signed by 

members of the fire department, was a token of appreciation for his leadership and dedication, and 

she expressed gratitude for his service and the respect he had earned from his team. 

There being no further comments, Chairman Brady closed the floor at 7:44 p.m. 

5. Public Hearing and Motion on Resolution 2025-79 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council 

Approving Budget Amendments for Fiscal Year 2025-2026 

Presented by Shannon Wimmer, Finance Director 

Finance Director Shannon Wimmer presented Resolution 2025-79, the first budget amendment for 

fiscal year 2026. She explained that several amendments carried over projects budgeted in FY25 but 

not completed by June 30, including the Cemetery Road project, demolition of the cemetery house, 

final payments on the headworks building, and projects within the PID. Additional amendments 

reflected new revenues and grants, such as funds for the drug task force, $16,500 for a part-time HR 

employee, $74,000 donated by Rio Tinto for the museum project, $1,000 for a buffalo painting 

sponsorship, and $1,500 from the State of Utah for the America 250 Utah program. 

She also noted smaller adjustments, including $7,500 to finish new netting at the golf course, funds 

for the Miss Tooele City scholarships, and restroom projects at Veterans Park and Gleneagles funded 

by park impact fees. She added that $4,000 was needed to upgrade the city’s time clock system and 

reported that $1.7 million would be allocated to begin drilling a new well on Rogers Road following 

successful testing.  

There being no questions from the Council, Chairman Brady opened the public hearing at 7:47 p.m. 

There were no comments. The floor was closed.  

Motion: Councilwoman Manzione moved to approve Resolution 2025-79, a Resolution of the 

Tooele City Council approving budget amendments for Fiscal Year 2025-2026. Councilman 

McCall seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Councilman McCall, “Aye”; Councilman 

Hansen, “Aye”, Councilwoman Gochis, “Aye”; Councilwoman Manzione, “Aye”; Chairman Brady, 

“Aye”. There were none opposed. The motion carried 5-0.  

6. Resolution 2025-78 A Resolution of the Tooele City Council Approving a Lease Purchase 

Agreement with Siddons Martin Emergency Group, LLC, for the Lease and Purchase of a 

Pierce Velocity Aerial Platform Fire Truck 

Presented by Matt McCoy, Fire Chief 

Fire Chief Matt McCoy presented Resolution 2025-78, seeking approval of a lease-purchase 

agreement with Siddons Martin Emergency Group, LLC for a Pierce Velocity aerial platform fire 

truck. He explained that a 2022 fire study identified the urgent need to modernize the department’s 

fleet due to the city’s rapid growth and increasing demands from high-density residential and multi-

story developments. Of the department’s two aerial trucks, only one currently meets ISO standards, 

limiting coverage. 



 

City Council Business Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 5 September 17, 2025 

Recorder’s Office 
 

Chief McCoy outlined that the proposal involved a seven-year lease-to-own agreement, beginning 

with a $500,000 down payment already budgeted, followed by annual payments of just over 

$300,000, for a total cost of $2,272,293.54. The agreement included prepayment discounts that would 

save the city more than $356,000. He described the truck as a mid-mount platform design, making it 

shorter and able to fit in Station No. 1, while providing a 100-foot aerial ladder with a pump and 

bucket. 

He confirmed that existing trucks would remain in service, with the older ladder truck housed at 

Station No. 2. Chief McCoy explained that the long-term goal was to create a sustainable replacement 

rotation, aligning with NFPA guidelines of retiring frontline apparatus after 15 years and reserve 

trucks after 25 years. Council members expressed support, and Councilman Hansen took the 

opportunity to publicly thank the fire department, sharing a recent personal experience where 

firefighters responded immediately to a call at his son’s garage. He praised their quick response and 

professionalism, noting that approximately 50 personnel had arrived on scene almost instantly. 

Motion: Councilwoman Gochis moved to approve Resolution 2025-78, a Resolution of the Tooele 

City Council approving a lease purchase agreement with Siddons Martin Emergency Group, LLC, for 

the lease and purchase of a pierce velocity aerial platform fire truck. Councilman Hansen seconded 

the motion. The vote was as follows: Councilman McCall, “Aye”; Councilman Hansen, “Aye”, 

Councilwoman Gochis, “Aye”; Councilwoman Manzione, “Aye”; Chairman Brady, “Aye”. There 

were none opposed. The motion carried 5-0.  

7. Invoices & Purchase Orders 

Presented by Shilo Baker, City Recorder 

Ms. Baker presented four invoices for approval. The first was to UDOT in the amount of $304,296.34 

for signal parts for the 2400 North and SR 36 traffic signal, a cost that would later be reimbursed by 

Smith’s. The second invoice was to Russell Welding Corp. for $34,884.55 for a solar house rail 

extension at the wastewater treatment plant. The third was to Axon Enterprise for $124,954.43 for 

new tasers and related equipment for the Police Department. The final invoice was to Turf Equipment 

and Irrigation for $60,305 for a Ventrac mini tractor for the golf course, which could also function as 

an aerator, seeder, trencher, and stump grinder. No questions or comments were raised by the council. 

Motion: Councilman McCall moved to approve the invoices as presented. Councilman Hansen 

seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Councilman McCall, “Aye”; Councilman Hansen, 

“Aye”, Councilwoman Gochis, “Aye”; Councilwoman Manzione, “Aye”; Chairman Brady, “Aye”. 

There were none opposed. The motion carried 5-0.   

8. Minutes 

~September 3, 2025 Business Meeting 

There were no corrections to the minutes. 

Motion: Councilwoman Manzione moved to approve the September 3, 2025 Business Meeting 

Minutes as presented. Councilman McCall seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: 

Councilman McCall, “Aye”; Councilman Hansen, “Aye”, Councilwoman Gochis, “Aye”; 

Councilwoman Manzione, “Aye”; Chairman Brady, “Aye”. There were none opposed. The motion 

carried 5-0. 

9. Adjourn 

There being no further business, Chairman Brady adjourned the meeting at 7:57 p.m. 

 

 



 

City Council Business Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 5 September 17, 2025 

Recorder’s Office 
 

The content of the minutes is not intended, nor are they submitted, as a verbatim transcription of the 

meeting. These minutes are a brief overview of what occurred at the meeting. 

 

Approved this ____ day of October, 2025 

 

 

_____________________________________________ 

Justin Brady, City Council Chair 


	CC Agenda
	Ordinance 2025-27 Amending City Code Section 4-8-2
	2025-27 Road Width Requirement
	2025-27 Exhibit A

	Ordinance 2025-28 An Ordinance Amending the Zoning Map
	2025-28 Business Park Amend Zoning
	2025-28 Exhibit A
	2025-28 Business Park Amend Zoning
	2025-28 Exhibit B
	2025-28 Business Park Amend Zoning
	2025-28 Exhibit C

	CC PKT
	Resolution 2025-80 Speakmans Library Stamped Concrete Project, East
	2025-80 Library Concrete - Speakmans
	2025-80 Exhibit A
	2025-80 Library Concrete - Speakmans
	2025-80 Exhibit B


	CC PKT
	Resolution 2025-81 Change Order #5 England Acres Phase III
	2025-81 England Acres Phase III - Change Order No. 5
	2025-81 Exhibit A


	England_Acres_Park_North_Expansion - Landscaping
	Northwest Area Square Footage (002)
	CC PKT
	Resolution 2025-82 Speakmans Concrete Service for Sidewalk
	2025-82 200 West Sidewalk.pdf
	2025-82 Exhibit A.pdf
	2025-82 200 West Sidewalk
	2025-82 Exhibit B.pdf

	Tyler Technologies Invoice
	McCormick & Sons Invoice
	Rocky Mountain Power Invoice
	Broken Arrow Invoice
	CC Draft Minutes 9.17.25
	CC Draft Minutes 9.17.25


